Department of Health and Human Services Grants Management Advisory Committee (GMAC) Ad Hoc Subcommittee – Bylaws Review DRAFT Meeting Minutes February 26, 2014

Location: Held via teleconference only

Subcommittee Members Present

Subcommittee Members Absent

Jeff Fontaine, GMAC Chair

John Thurman

Connie McMullen

Others Present

Al Conklin, GMAC Member
Laurie Olson, GMU Chief
Gloria Sulhoff, GMU Administrative Assistant
Kim Young and Jessica (?), Children's Cabinet
Alanna (?), Washoe County FRC
Katy Murphy Baine and Jeannie Byassie, Nevada Health Centers

I. Call to Order, Welcome and Introductions

Jeff Fontaine, Chair of the GMAC and the GMAC Bylaws Subcommittee, called the meeting to order at 3:05 pm and lead roll call of the individuals participating on the call. He confirmed a quorum of subcommittee members.

II. Public Comment

None

III. Bylaws Discussion

Mr. Fontaine led a discussion on review of the bylaws. Specific items discussed and recommendations made are as follows.

<u>Article II, Section A – Administration of Program and Funding Sources</u>

The subcommittee agreed to GMU recommendations to delete Family to Family Connection, because it was defunded in the 2011 Legislature, and add Contingency Fund to Support Victims of Human Trafficking, which was created in the 2013 Legislature.

<u>Article II, Sections B and C – Role of Advisory Committee and Advisory Committee Members</u> Discussed but no changes recommended.

Article III, Section A, Subsection G - Consider Funding Strategies

Mr. Fontaine asked Ms. Olson for clarification of the meaning of this Subsection. Ms. Olson shared her interpretation, which was to help identify potential collaborations between State departments and divisions and partnerships with external agencies to better maximize funds. Mr. Fontaine felt this should be better articulated in the bylaws and asked Ms. Olson to draft additional language to expand Subsection G. The members also agreed that this was something the GMAC should discuss more often in order to develop a strategy to accomplish this duty. Ms. McMullen suggested adding it as an agenda discussion item at the annual meeting.

Article IV, Section A - Membership

Ms. McMullen voiced concern that committee representation did not include the field of mental and/or behavioral health and requested a Bill Draft Request to revise the statute in order to include a

representative from this area. Mr. Fontaine will add that to the agenda for the next GMAC meeting as an action item to make a recommendation to the Director.

Article IV, Section B - Terms

The description of the terms for original members, which was provided to allow for staggering of terms when the committee was first created, was felt to be confusing and no longer necessary. The subcommittee recommends deleting that part of Section B so it simply states that each member serves a term of two years, and that term limits be increased from eight to twelve consecutive years in order to better provide for committee members with institutional knowledge.

Article IV, Section D - Vacancies

The subcommittee recommends a change in language from "shall make recommendations...to appoint a new member" to "may make recommendations..."

Article V, Section A, Subsection a – Annual Election of Officers

It was recommended that the section be amended to indicate a time frame for the annual election, possibly designating the GMAC's first regularly scheduled meeting of the new fiscal year as the Annual Meeting when elections would be held. There was also discussion regarding the implication that the Vice Chair would advance to Chair, the development of a succession plan, and whether term limits should be imposed for officers of the committee, but no changes to the bylaws were recommended. Ms. Olson stated that a succession plan could be included in a governance policy, which is allowed for in statute and included in the bylaws under Article VI, Section A, Subsection b.

Article VI, Section A, Subsection b – Adopt Rules for Management and Government

No changes recommended.

Article VI, Section B - Quorum

The subcommittee requested that staff change the verbiage to better clarify the definition of a quorum. Article VI, Section D - Absences

Recommend deleting Section D in its entirety.

Article VI, Section E - Procedures During Videoconferenced Meetings

The members discussed whether this item was something that belongs in the bylaws. They recommend deleting Section E in its entirety, and deleting the word "Protocol" from the title of Article VI, which currently reads "Meeting Procedures and Protocol".

Article VII, Section B - Subcommittees' Functions

There was discussion regarding the inclusion of the phrase "and assist in the development of performance indicators" among the activities that subcommittee members may engage in. This was felt to be a staff role, and Ms. Olson confirmed that, to her knowledge, the development of performance indicators had always been done by staff without assistance from the GMAC. The subcommittee recommends changing the phrase "assist in the development of" to something along the lines of "evaluate and make suggestions regarding performance indicators."

The subcommittee agreed to allow Ms. Olson and staff to make general wordsmithing and formatting improvements to the document. The subcommittee's recommended changes to the bylaws will be forwarded to the GMAC for consideration at their next meeting, scheduled for March 13, 2014.

IV. Public Comment

None

V. Adjournment

Following a motion from Connie McMullen, the meeting adjourned at 4:20 pm.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES GRANTS MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS

AUG 2 5 2010

ARTICLE I NAME

A. The name of this advisory committee shall be the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES GRANTS MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE.

ARTICLE II PURPOSE and ROLE

- A. The purpose of this Advisory Committee, created under NRS Chapter 232, shall be to advise and assist the Department of Health and Human Services in the administration of the following programs and/or funding sources:
 - a. Children's Trust Fund;
 - b. Family to Family Connection;
 - c. Family Resource Centers;
 - d. Social Services Block Grants (Title XX, Social Security Act) non-state grants;
 - c. Fund for a Healthy Nevada grants; and
 - f. Other programs as requested by the Director, Department of Health and Human Services.
- B. The role of this Advisory Committee shall be to support the Department Mission, as established by the Director:
 - a. The Department of Health and Human Services promotes the health and well-being of Nevadans through the delivery or facilitation of essential services to ensure families are strengthened, public health is protected and individuals achieve their highest level of self-sufficiency.
- C. The role of Advisory Committee members will be to represent the best interests of the organization ahead of individual interests in all public communications and refer any communications regarding Department programs to Department staff. Official statements regarding Department programs must be approved by the Director prior to statements being made.

ARTICLE III DUTIES

- A. The Advisory Committee shall:
 - Review requests received by the Department for awards of money to provide services to persons served by the programs administered by the Department;
 - Conduct public hearings to accept public testimony regarding the funds administered;
 - Submit recommendations to the Director concerning each request for an award of money that the Advisory Committee believes should be granted;
 - Adopt policies setting forth criteria to determine which agencies, organizations and institutions to recommend for an award of money;
 - e. Monitor awards of money granted by the Department;
 - f. Assist Department staff in determining the needs of local communities and in setting priorities for funding programs;
 - g. Consider funding strategies for the Department, including, without limitation, seeking ways to avoid unnecessary duplication of the services for which awards of money are granted, and make recommendations concerning funding strategies to the Director; and
 - Assist in the development of performance indicators, accountability measures, and program policies.
- B. The Director may request that the Advisory Committee assume additional responsibilities concerning specific programs.

ARTICLE IV MEMBERSHIP and TERMS

- A. The Advisory Committee shall be composed of fifteen (15) members appointed by the Director to reflect the ethnic and geographical diversity of this state:
 - a. A superintendent of a county school district; or designee
 - b. A director of a local agency providing services for abused or neglected children; or designee
 - A member who possesses knowledge, skill and experience in the provision of services to children;
 - d. A representative of a department of juvenile justice services;
 - A member who possesses knowledge, skill and experience in the provision of services to senior citizens;
 - f. Two members who possess knowledge, skill and experience in finance or in business generally;
 - g. A representative of the Nevada Association of Counties;
 - h. A member who possesses knowledge, skill and experience in building partnerships between the public sector and the private sector;

- Two members of the public who possess knowledge of or experience in the provision of services to persons or families who are disadvantaged or at-risk;
- A member who possesses knowledge, skill and experience in the provision of services to persons with disabilities;
- k. A member who possesses knowledge, skill and experience in the provision of services relating to the cessation of the use of tobacco;
- A member who possesses knowledge, skill and experience in the provision of health services to children; and
- m. A representative who is a member of the Nevada Commission on Aging, created by NRS 427A.032, who must not be a Legislator.
- B. Five members serve an initial term that begins July 1, 2005 and expires June 30, 2006; six members serve an initial term that begins July 1, 2005 and expires June 30, 2007. After the initial terms, each member of the Advisory Committee serves for a term of two (2) years. No member may serve more than eight (8) consecutive years. Each member of the Advisory Committee continues in office until his successor is appointed.
- C. Each member is expected to participate in a majority of the meetings and activities. The Advisory Committee may, after discussion, invite a member to resign due to absences.
- D. Upon the occurrence of any vacancy, the Advisory Committee shall make recommendations to the Director to appoint a new member. When a member is appointed to fill an unfinished term, they shall complete the unfinished term and will be eligible to be appointed for three (3) additional terms. Consideration shall be given to retaining the demographic, geographic, and ethnic balance of the Commission.
- E. An entity who employs a member of the Advisory Committee is not eligible to receive a grant. This subsection does not prohibit an entity that serves solely as the fiscal agent for a recipient of a grant from employing a member of the Advisory Committee.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

- A. The Advisory Committee shall:
 - a. At its first meeting and annually thereafter, elect a Chair and Vice Chair from among its members.
 - i. The nominee receiving the highest number of votes for each of the two positions shall serve in the respective office.
 - ii. The officers shall not be from the same geographic area.

- b. The Chair shall preside at all meetings and generally supervise the affairs of the Advisory Committee, or designate a representative to do so.
- c. The Vice Chair shall assist and assume the duties of the Chair in case of his absence.

ARTICLE VI MEETING PROCEDURES and PROTOCOL

- A. The Advisory Committee shall:
 - a. Meet at the call of the Director, the Chair or a majority of its members as necessary, within the budget of the Advisory Committee, but not to exceed six meetings per year; and
 - b. Adopt rules for its own management and government.
- B. A majority of the members of the Advisory Committee constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business, and a majority of a quorum present at any meeting is sufficient for any official action taken by the Advisory Committee.
- C. All proceedings and actions shall be conducted in accordance with the Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS 241.010 – 241.040 inclusive)
- D. Advisory Committee members shall, to the extent practicable, inform Department staff at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of an anticipated absence.
- E. In the event that a videoconference is scheduled to accommodate Advisory Committee members or the public, the following procedures will be observed:
 - a. Speakers will identify themselves to the Chair for the benefit of remote participants;
 - b. The Chair will restate the names of members who make and second motions requiring action;
 - c. All members will facilitate the process by observing the following:
 - Refraining from informal speech or conversation that is not intended for public consumption;
 - ii. Proactive inclusion of members from remote sites; and
 - iii. Attentiveness to speakers from remote sites.

ARTICLE VII SUBCOMMITTEES

- A. The Chair of the Advisory Committee may appoint Subcommittees composed of members of the Advisory Committee, former members of the Advisory Committee and members of the public who have relevant experience or knowledge.
- B. Subcommittees may review needs assessments, develop preliminary recommendations for funding priorities and strategies, and assist in the development of performance indicators and accountability measures.
- C. Subcommittees may take action with a majority of members present.
- D. Subcommittees are subject to the open meeting law.
- E. All recommendations approved by Subcommittees will be forwarded to the Advisory Committee for further action.

ARTICLE VIII EXPENSES

- A. Each member of the Advisory Committee who is not an officer or employee of this State or a political subdivision of this State is entitled to receive a salary of not more than \$80 per day, fixed by the Director, while engaged in the business of the Advisory Committee.
- B. While engaged in the business of the Advisory Committee, each member of the Advisory Committee is entitled to receive the per diem allowance and travel expenses provided for state officers and employees generally.
- C. A member of the Advisory Committee who is an officer or employee of this State or a political subdivision of this State must be relieved from his duties without loss of his regular compensation so that he may prepare for and attend meetings of the Advisory Committee and perform any work necessary to carry out the duties of the Advisory Committee in the most timely manner practicable. A state agency or political subdivision of this State shall not require an officer or employee who is a member of the Advisory Committee to:
 - a. Make up the time he is absent from work to carry out his duties as a member of the Advisory Committee; or
 - b. Take annual leave or compensatory time for the absence.

ARTICLE IX CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- A. The Department will survey its Advisory Committee members annually to collect information regarding their affiliations outside of the Department. If a member's personal or employment circumstances change before 12 months have elapsed, it is the member's responsibility to update the Disclosure Statement and submit it to the Department.
- B. Conflicts of interest must be declared by members prior to discussion of any matter that would provide direct financial benefit for that member, or otherwise have the appearance of a conflict of interest. When funding or other decisions are made regarding an organization with which the member has an affiliation, the member shall state his intention to abstain from making specific motions or casting a vote, before participating in related discussion. The Chair, or a majority of the Advisory Committee, may also declare a conflict of interest exists for a member, and ask that the member be removed from the voting process.

ARTICLE X AMENDMENTS

A. These operating procedures may be altered, amended, or repealed by a majority of the Advisory Committee members at any of its regularly scheduled meeting subject to affirmation of the Director.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED October 21, 2009

Chair, Grants Management Advisory Commit	ttee
Advisory Committee Members:	What have the second of the se
Merlinda R Dalleys Bullini Julia Michiele Slingi Jan Gelhert July Jan Julia Approved:	Brue J. M. Chinany
Michael J. Willden Director, Department of Health and Human S	ervices